



The Society for
Integrative &
Comparative
Biology

DIVISION OF ECOLOGY AND EVOLUTION BYLAWS

*As amended May 30, 1980; January 1, 1985; May 20, 1986; September, 1990; December 1995;
January 2000; June 2009; July 2011; October 2021*

Article I: Name

The official name of this division shall be “The Division of Ecology and Evolution.”

Article II: Purpose

The purpose of this Division shall be to advance, coordinate, and assist research and publication of knowledge regarding the ecological and evolutionary relations of organisms, and to act as a liaison agency between investigators in the several scientific disciplines involved.

Article III: Organization

The Division of Ecology and Evolution shall be a subdivision of the Society for Integrative and Comparative Biology and shall be governed in all its operations by the Constitution and Bylaws of that Society.

Article IV: Membership

Membership in the Division is open to all classes of members of the SICB. It is acquired by registration with the SICB business office, e.g., via the SICB web site or when the member pays all required dues.

Article V. Administrative Organization

Section 1. Officers

- A) The officers of the Division shall be Chair, Past Chair, Chair-Elect, Secretary, Secretary-Elect, Program Officer, and Program Officer-Elect. These six offices shall constitute the Divisional Executive Committee and shall be responsible for the affairs of the Division.
- B) The term of office for the Chair, Chair-Elect, Program Officer, and Secretary shall be two (2) years. The term of office for the Secretary-Elect and Program Officer-Elect shall be one (1) year. The term of office of all elected officers and appointed representatives shall begin at the end of the second SICB Executive Committee meeting at the Annual Meeting in the year the term is to begin and will end at the adjournment of the second SICB Executive Committee meeting at the Annual Meeting in the year the term is to expire.
- C) In the circumstance where an elected officer is unable to complete their term of office, the following provisions are made: If the office of Secretary or Program Officer is vacated early, the Chair, in consultation with the Divisional Executive Committee, will appoint someone to serve until elections can be held to fill the position. If the office of Divisional Chair is vacant, the Divisional Executive Committee, in consultation with the SICB President, will appoint someone to be the interim Chair until an election is held.

Section 2. Elections

- A) All Officers except the Chair, Past Chair, Program Officer and Secretary shall be elected by majority vote of all those members responding to a ballot submitted to the entire membership of the division, as required by the bylaws of the Society, at least sixty days before the expiration of the current officers' terms.
- B) Elections for Chair-Elect and Secretary-Elect shall be held alternate years. Elections for the Secretary-Elect, and Program Officer-Elect will be held such that their term of office begins 1 year prior to the end of the term of office for the Chair, Secretary, and Program Officer. Balloting for a new Chair-Elect will be conducted in the second year of office of the incumbent Chair and Chair-Elect.
- C) The Past Chair, Chair, Program Officer, and Secretary, upon the completion of the second year in office, shall automatically be succeeded by the Chair, Chair-Elect, Program Officer-Elect, and Secretary-Elect, respectively.
- D) Elections of officers shall be held by appropriately secure electronic ballots. A brief biography of each candidate shall be made available on the ballot. The Secretary shall notify the candidates for office of the results. In the event that a vote results in a tie, the members of the Divisional Executive Committee shall vote to resolve the tie. In the event of a tie vote by the officers of the division, the division chair shall cast the deciding vote.

Section 3. Procedures for Nominations

The Nominating Committee shall consist of three members of the Divisional Executive Committee and one member-at-large. Two candidates shall be presented for each office. The Nominating Committee must certify to the Secretary that each candidate has declared a willingness to run for office, and to serve if elected. The candidates shall be announced in the

Spring Newsletter of the Division. Additional nominations for any office may be made in writing to the Secretary by ten members of the Division.

Section 4. Divisional Executive Committee

In intervals between meetings, management of the Division is vested in the Divisional Executive Committee consisting of the officers of the Division, student and postdoctoral members excluded.

Section 5. Committees

Committees will be formed as needs arise. Members will be appointed by the Chair in consultation with the Divisional Executive Committee.

Section 6. Finances

The necessary expenses of the Division shall be paid from the treasury of the Society. All members of the Division of Ecology and Evolution may be assessed an annual fee in addition to SICB dues to be used to pay divisional expenses above and beyond those covered by the SICB budget allotment, including support for divisional functions at the SICB annual meeting and other activities, as determined by the Chair in consultation with the Divisional Executive Committee. The amount of the annual fee will be determined by the DEE Executive Committee. No officer or member of the Division shall have authority to incur any expenses in the name of the Society, except as above specified.

Article VI. Duties of the Officers

Section 1. Chair

The Chair shall preside at the business meetings of the Division, shall be responsible for the programs and meetings of the Division, and shall promote in every way practical the interests of the Division. The Chair shall represent the Division on the Executive Committee of the Society.

Section 2. Chair-Elect

The Chair-Elect shall assume the duties of the Chair whenever that person is temporarily unable to act.

Section 3. Secretary

The Secretary shall keep the records of the section, prepare the newsletters, and perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned for secretarial attention. Normally, a minimum of two Newsletters shall be distributed each year to inform the members of Division activities.

Section 4. Secretary-Elect

The Secretary-elect shall assume the duties of the Secretary whenever that person is temporarily unable to act.

Section 5. Program Officer

The Program Officer shall arrange programs for meetings of the Division and shall coordinate special programs with Program Officers of the parent and related societies. The Past Program Officer shall serve one year as a member of the Divisional Executive Committee.

Section 6. Program Officer-Elect

The Program Officer-Elect shall assume the duties of the Program Officer whenever that person is temporarily unable to act.

Section 7. All Officers

All officers are expected to notify the Chair when they are temporarily unable to carry out their duties or are unable to complete their term. In the event the Chair is temporarily unable to carry out the duties of the office or is unable to complete the term of office, the Secretary should be notified.

Article VII. Meetings of the Section

Section 1. Business Meeting

The business meeting of the Division shall be held at least once a year, ordinarily concurrent with the regular annual meeting of the Society for Integrative and Comparative Biology. If a concurrent meeting is not feasible, then the Divisional Executive Committee shall decide when and where the annual business meeting will be held.

Section 2. Special Meetings

Divisional meetings may be held at other times and places on call of the Chair or when requested by ten (10) members of the Division. Notice shall be sent to each member of the Division sixty (60) days in advance of any meeting.

Article VIII. Quorum

Section 1.

Fifteen members shall constitute a quorum of the Division and three a quorum of the Executive Committee.

Article IX. Amendments to the Bylaws

Section 1.

Proposed amendments to the Bylaws may be originated by the Divisional Executive Committee or by the members of the Division. Bylaws may be amended by two-thirds vote of those responding by ballot provided that notice has been given to all members at least thirty (30) days in advance.

Article X. Best Student Presentation Awards

A certificate and monetary prize will be awarded for a) the Best Oral Presentation, and b) the Best Presentation by a student at the annual meeting. Students who have not yet taken the Ph.D. degree, as well as new PhDs who have received the degree not more than 12 months prior to the meeting, are eligible to compete for the awards. The work presented must be original and must be carried out principally by the student presenting the paper or poster. Students submitting abstracts of work to be presented at the Annual Meeting may apply to compete for the awards. A student who applies must be a member of the Division of Ecology and Evolution. A student who wins the Best Oral Presentation may not compete in the Best Oral Presentation competition in this division in the future. A student who wins the Best Poster Presentation may not compete in the Best Poster Presentation competition in this division in the future. If, in the opinion of the judges, none of the oral or poster presentations is deserving of an award, the awards may not be presented that year. In the case of a tie, duplicate awards may be presented. The Chair of the Division will appoint an awards committee who will act as judges. All papers identified as competing for the prize must be attended by at least two judges, and preferably by three judges. No member who has a student competing for a prize shall be eligible to vote or comment on their student.

Criteria for judging presentations will be agreed upon by the Divisional Executive Committee and used to create an evaluation form. The evaluation form is provided to aid the judge in evaluating the presentation for content and presentation. Judging criteria will be shared in advance with BSP participants.

The results of the judging shall be tabulated by the Secretary, and a copy of the results given to at least one other member of the Divisional Executive Committee before leaving the meeting.